ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES
STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 27, 2003
3:04 p.m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Peggy Wl son, Chair
Representative Cheryll Heinze
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Kelly Wl f
Representative Sharon Ci ssna
Representative Mary Kapsner
MEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

PROFESSI ONAL TEACHI NG PRACTI CES COW SSI ON

Lawr ence Lee O daker - Auke Bay
Crai g Baker - Kodi ak

Vivian Dailey - Fairbanks

Ki nberly Jockusch - Anchorage

- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

HOUSE BILL NO. 25

"An Act relating to health care decisions, including do not
resuscitate orders and the donation of body parts, and to powers
of attorney relating to health care, including the donation of
body parts; and providing for an effective date.”

HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 25

SHORT TI TLE: HEALTH CARE SERVI CES DI RECTI VES
SPONSOR( S):  REPRESENTATI VE( S) WEYHRAUCH

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -1- February 27, 2003



Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

01/ 21/ 03 0038 (H PREFI LE RELEASED ( 1/ 10/ 03)

01/ 21/ 03 0038 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 21/ 03 0038 (H HES, JUD, FIN

02/ 13/ 03 (H HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 13/ 03 (H Heard & Hel d

02/ 13/ 03 (H M NUTE( HES)

02/ 27/ 03 (H HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

LAWRENCE LEE OLDAKER, Appoi ntee

to the Professional Teaching Practices Comm ssion

Auke Bay, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Professiona
Teachi ng Practi ces Conm ssi on.

CRAI G BAKER, Appoi nt ee

to the Professional Teaching Practices Conm ssion

Kodi ak, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Professiona
Teachi ng Practi ces Comm ssion.

VI VI AN DAI LEY, Appoi ntee

to the Professional Teaching Practices Conm ssion

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Professiona
Teachi ng Practi ces Comm ssion.

KI MBERLY JOCKUSCH, Appoi nt ee

to the Professional Teaching Practices Conm ssion

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Professiona
Teachi ng Practi ces Comm ssi on.

REPRESENTATI VE BRUCE WEYHRAUCH

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor of HB 25, provided background
i nformati on and expl ai ned anendnents to the committee.

LI NDA SYLVESTER, Staff

to Representative Bruce Weyhrauch
Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 2- February 27, 2003



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented anmendnents to CSHB 25, Version D,
and answered questions fromthe conmttee.

JENS SAAKVI TNE, Director

Life Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of Amendnent 3 to CSHB
25, Version D, and answered questions fromthe commttee.

MARI A WALLI NGTON, M D., Ethici st

Provi dence Health Systens

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Asked questions about CSHB 25, Version D,
expressed concerns, and answered questions fromthe commttee.

Rl CHARD BLOCK

Christian Science Committee on Publications

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 25.

RON COMN, Long Term Care Onbudsman

Mental Health Trust Authority

Departnent of Revenue

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 25 and suggested
any fine-tuning can be done in the next commttee of referral.

MARGUERI TE STI TSON

AARP
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified during hearing on HB 25 in

support of advance directives.

ROGER BRONSQN, Executive Director

Al aska Mental Health Consuner Wb

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 25, suggesting
any changes can be addressed in the next conmttee of referral.

EDI E ZUKAUSKAS, Att orney

Disability Law Center of Al aska, Inc.

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of CSHB 25, Version D,
and answered questions fromthe nenbers.

SI QUX DOUGLAS
Hospi ce and Honme Care of Juneau

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 3- February 27, 2003



Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 25.

MARI E HELM
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of CSHB 25, Version D.

CARCLE EDWARDS, R N., Menber

Legi slative Commttee, Al aska Nurses Associ ation

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in conceptual support of CSHB 25,
Version D; expressed concerns and answered questions from the
comittee.

MARK JCOHNSQN, Chi ef

Community Heal th and Emergency Medi cal Services

Di vision of Public Health

Departnent of Health and Social Services

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on CSHB 25, Version D, and
answered questions fromthe commttee.

Rl CHARD RAI NERY, Executive Director

Al aska Mental Health Board

Department of Health and Social Services

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of CSHB 25, Version D,
and of fered suggest ed changes.

ROSALI E WALKER, Presi dent

Juneau Chapter of AARP;

Board Menber, O der Persons Action G oup (OPAG

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified about the inportance of HB 25 and
encouraged the comrittee to continue to work on it.

MARI E DARLI N

Capitol City Task Force, AARP

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During hearing on HB 25, said she is glad
the conmittee is taking tinme to ensure that it is done
correctly.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-19, SIDE A
Nunmber 0001

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -4- February 27, 2003



CHAI R PEGGY W LSON cal |l ed the House Heal th, Education and Socia
Services Standing Commttee neeting to order at 3:04 p.m

Representatives WIson, WIf, Heinze, Seaton, G ssnha, and
Kapsner were present at the call to order. Representative Gatto
was excused fromcommttee due to illness.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS5

Pr of essi onal Teachi ng Practi ces Comm ssion

Number 0120

CHAIR WLSON announced that confirmation hearings for the
appointees to the Professional Teaching Practices Conmmi ssion
woul d be taken up as the first order of business.

Number 0139

LAWRENCE LEE OLDAKER, Appointee, to the Professional Teaching
Practices Conm ssion, gave a brief history of his professional
car eer. He said he is currently a professor eneritus at the
University of Al aska Southeast, and has conpleted a three-year
tenure on the Professional Teaching Practices Comm ssion

currently serving as the chairnman. M. ddaker told the
commttee his experience as a school superintendent and work in
gui di ng | eader ship pr ogr ans t hat train princi pal s and
superintendents have made him keenly aware of |egal and ethica
responsibilities of educators. He said he taught a |aw class
and has always tried to focus on |egal and ethical
responsibilities. M. O daker said he believes his service on

the commssion is a l|logical extension of those academic and
pr of essi onal experiences he has had.

Nunber 0225

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER nade a notion to advance the confirnation
of Lawence Lee O daker, appointee to the Professional Teaching
Practices Comm ssion, to the joint session for consideration.
There being no objection, the confirmation of Lawence Lee
A daker was advanced.

Number 0350
CRAI G BAKER, Appointee to the Professional Teaching Practices
Comm ssion, testified via teleconference and gave a brief

history of his professional career. He told the commttee he
has been teaching at Kodiak Hi gh School for 19 years. M. Baker

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 5- February 27, 2003



said it an honor to be appointed to the comm ssion, and he | ooks
forward to the opportunity to wuphold the ethics of his
pr of essi on.

Number 0406

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked M. Baker if he believes serving on
t he conm ssion woul d hanper his ability to be a good teacher.

Nunber 0441

MR. BAKER responded that he does not see it as a hindrance to
teachi ng, but rather an enhancenent. He told the commttee that
he has already attended neetings and feels he has learned a
great deal about the conm ssion.

Number 0472

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA nmade a notion to advance the confirmation
of Craig Baker, appointee to the Professional Teaching Practices
Comm ssion, to the joint session for consideration. There being
no objection, the confirmation of Craig Baker was advanced.

Number 0534

VI VI AN DAI LEY, Appointee to the Professional Teaching Practices
Comm ssion, testified via teleconference and gave a brief
hi story of her professional career. She told the commttee she
is currently the principal of North Pole H gh School, where she
has served for the past seven years. Ms. Dailey said that she
would like to serve on the commission to continue to pronote
ethics anong educators in Al aska. She said she feels it is
inportant to have a principal on the commssion and she is
pl eased to serve in that role.

Nunmber 0605

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE made a notion to advance the confirmation
of Vivian Dailey, appointee to the Professional Teaching
Practices Conmmission, to the joint session for consideration.
There being no objection, the confirmation of Vivian Dailey was
advanced.

Number 0644

KI MBERLY JOCKUSCH, Appointee to the Professional Teachi ng
Practices Comm ssion, testified via teleconference and gave a

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 6- February 27, 2003



brief history of her professional career. She told the
commttee that she has been teaching in the Anchorage School

District for 15 years. Ms. Jockusch said that she feels
educators should adhere to the highest standards. She feels it
is inportant t hat the comm ssion nonitor the teaching

profession, work proactively with new teachers, and sanction
teachers when there is a problem

Nunber 0704

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if there is a nentoring role in the
Pr of essi onal Teachi ng Practi ces Comm ssion.

Number 0727

M5. JOCKUSCH replied that she does not believe there is a
mentoring conponent in the comm ssion because its role is to
| ook at ethical behaviors of teachers. However, Ms. Jockusch
said that she believes nentoring is a critical part of what
districts are doing around the state.

Number 0752

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked what "Box it, Bag it Mathematics" is.

Nunmber 0766

M5. JOCKUSCH responded that it is a way of putting together
materials to teach mathematics. It is a hands-on nethod of
| earni ng mat hemati cs. The program was done in Anchorage about

10 years ago.
Number 0779

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON made a notion to advance the confirmation
of Kinberly Jockusch, appointee to the Professional Teaching
Practices Conmmission, to the joint session for consideration.
There being no objection, the confirmation of Kinberly Jockusch
was advanced.

HB 25- HEALTH CARE SERVI CES DI RECTI VES

Nunmber 0839
CHAI R WLSON announced that the next order of business would be

HOUSE BILL NO 25, "An Act relating to health care decisions
including do not resuscitate orders and the donation of body

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -7- February 27, 2003



parts, and to powers of attorney relating to health care,
including the donation of body parts; and providing for an
effective date.”

Nunmber 0849

REPRESENTATI VE BRUCE WEYHRAUCH, Al aska State Legislature, told
the conmittee he has appreciated working on this bill wth
Representatives Heinze, Seat on, and Cissna, their staff,
professionals in the nental health and disability groups,
hospital sectors, and senior citizens groups. He told the
commttee a |ot of good comments and feedback have cone in, and
what he has found through the course of those discussions is
that there are a |lot of passionate, interested people working on
t he issues.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH said he has a nunmber of anmendnents to
this bill that he would like to bring before the conmttee. He
al so pointed out that the bill has been referred to the House
Judi ci ary Standing Conm ttee.

Number 1013

CHAIR WLSON announced that the procedure the conmittee wll
follow in hearing bills is as follows: first, the sponsor of
the bill wll introduce and explain the legislation; second,
prof essional testinmony will be taken; third, public testinony
will be taken; fourth, questions wll be taken from the
commttee [because nmany tinmes the questions nenbers mght have
will be answered in the course of the hearing]; and finally, the
commttee will take up anmendnents. |In this case, however, Chair
Wl son said since Representative Wyhrauch is the sponsor, the
committee will take those anendnents whenever he is ready to
present them

Number 1061

CHAIR WLSON noved to adopt CSHB 25, Version 23-LS0137\D
Banni ster, 2/27/03, as a work draft. There being no objection
Version D was brought before the conmttee.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH told the conmttee that this bil

brings into one [section in statute] end-of-life health care
deci si ons. The bill deals with powers of attorney for naking
health care decisions, decisions relating to body parts
distribution, and end-of-life care and non-care deci sions. The
bill addresses who can make those decisions for an individual if

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 8- February 27, 2003



they are incapacitated. It was designed to bring under one roof
the kind of decisions that individuals are faced with making at
end-of-life for |oved ones. Representati ve Weyhrauch said that
a lot of this has been discussed at the previous hearing so he
said he woul d keep his conments brief.

Nunber 1151

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for a synopsis of the changes in
this bill.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH provided a conceptual review of the
changes. He said nost of the changes he is suggesting have cone
about as a result of discussions with Dr. Maria Wllington,
medical ethicist for Providence Health Care System and the
Disability Law Center. He said he also tried to address
guestions that were raised by Representatives Ci ssna and Hei nze
at | ast week's neeting.

Number 1305
CHAI R W LSON asked if those changes are already in Version D.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH responded that the changes are in the
proposed conmittee substitute. He pointed out that there are
sone anendnents from Representative Cissna and Life Al aska on
t he tissue-and-organ donation portion of the bill

CHAIR WLSON asked the sponsor if he would like to present the
anendnents at this tine so those testifying will know what the
final bill will ook like.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH presented Conceptual Anmendnment 1 and
asked if Linda Sylvester [staff assistant to Representative
Weyhr auch] would join him in presenting the anmendnent.
Conceptual Amendnent 1 read [original punctuation provided]

Page 4, Line 20

Fol I owi ng (a)
Insert "except in the case of nental illness.™

O her conform ng anendnent s W thin Section
13.52.030, elimnating references to surrogates for
ment al heal thcare directives.

Nunmber 1366

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 9- February 27, 2003



LI NDA SYLVESTER, Staff to Representative Bruce Wyhrauch, said
that the amendnent is inportant because in general terns the
health care directive creates an agent, which is a person who
has power of attorney for soneone's health care, and also
creates a group of people called surrogates. This bill would
l egally recognize surrogates and the hierarchy whereby the
surrogates are selected from a famly order. She told the
commttee there was sone consideration given to including nental
health care groups in this section of the bill whereby an
i ndividual can have a surrogate for nental health care.
However, based on conversations with Edie Zukauskas from the
Disability Law Center, the decision was nade to conpletely

exenpt nental health care from surrogates. Ms. Sylvester said
if an individual is going to be acting on behalf of another who
is mentally ill, that individual will have to be the nentally

ill person's guardian [who is appointed by the courts] or agent
[ havi ng power of attorney].

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH told the commttee it is inportant to
note that becomng a guardian for soneone with nental illness
takes an extensive court procedure with a full plan of due
process rights in a court of law, with a court finding. He told
the conmttee that is an inportant consideration because that
does not happen easily.

Nunmber 1446

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt Conceptual Amendnent 1
[text provided previously]. W thout objection, Conceptua
Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH presented [Conceptual] Anendnent 2,
whi ch read [original punctuation provided]:

Page 5, Line 22

Fol | owi ng "decision."
Insert "and the primary physician nmakes the decision
based upon the best interest of the patient.”

MS. SYLVESTER told the commttee Dr. WAllington, an ethicist for
Provi dence Health System was concerned with the situation when
surrogates are in conflict. She told the commttee when there
is disagreenent over nedical care, generally the majority rules;
however, if the surrogates are evenly divided, then the entire
group of surrogates are disqualified. Dr. Wallington was

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -10- February 27, 2003



concerned that in this case it left no one to nmake decisions in
the best interest of the patient. Ms. Sylvester said that the
intention was to treat those surrogates as so conflicted; the
situation is so volatile, it is time to |ook outside that group,
and the decision reverts to the doctor. Some hospitals have
procedures whereby this actually reverts to an ethics commttee.
There are nechanisnms in place to handle these conflicts; this
| anguage nmakes it crystal clear that the decision goes back to
t he doctor. Ms. Sylvester told the conmttee this anendnent is
based on the recommendation of Dr. Wallington, and they believe
this anendnent clears that confusion.

Number 1610

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE asked if the physician would then go to an
ethics coommttee or if he/she has the ultimte power.

M5. SYLVESTER replied that hospitals have different ways of
dealing with that kind of situation. She told the commttee in
the real world the doctor is going to be making these decisions.
The anmendnment will give the doctor the legal right to nake the
decision in the best interest of the patient.

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE asked if the doctor is required to go to
an ethics commttee, or if the physician can make that deci sion
W thout going to an ethics commttee.

CHAIR WLSON clarified that each hospital wll make its own
policy and the doctor will proceed based on what the hospital's
rul es are.

Nunber 1629

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt Anmendnent 2 [text provided
previously]. Wthout objection, Anmendnent 2 was adopt ed.

Nunmber 1638

CHAI R W LSON announced the committee will take a brief at-ease
at 3:35 p.m The chair reconvened the neeting at 3:38 p. m

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH began discussion of what he was
of fering as Amendnent 3. He asked the committee to |ook at the
cover letter and attached suggestions from Life Alaska [a tissue
and organ donor organization]. The suggestions, titled
"Analysis of Current Uniform Anatomcal Gft Act," in essence
were as follows, with Life Alaska's witten coments given in

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -11- February 27, 2003



parent heses; Anmendnent 3, an inexact copy of the statutes
thenmsel ves with strikethroughs and nonstandard insertions, in
essence did what is shown bel ow each recomendation in brackets:

Recomended del eti ons:

AS 13.50.014 (Requests by hospitals for anatom cal
gifts)
[ Del eted by Amendnent 3]

AS 13.50.016(b) (Exenptions - none)
[ Del eted by Amendnent 3]

AS 13.50.020 (Potential donees and purposes for which
anatomcal gifts may be nade)
[ Del eted by Anendnent 3]

AS 13.50.030(d) (Designate donor surgeon - never
needed)
[ Del eted by Amendnent 3]

AS 13.50.030(f) (Covered el sewhere - sanple form
[ Del eted by Amendnent 3]

AS 13.50.050 (Allows for revocation - covered by new
House Bill 25)
[ Del eted by Anendnent 3]

AS 13.50.065 (Covered by feds)
[ NOT del eted by Amendnent 3]

AS 13.50.080 (Uniform- general purposes)
[ Del eted by Anendnent 3]

AS 13.50.090 (Short title)
[ Del eted by Anendnent 3]

Recommended additi ons:

Add to AS 13.050.016(a): "Call hosp. or donor
program' (Add teeth)
[ Anendnment 3 added "or donor progrant after "inform

the appropriate hospital "]

Add to AS 13.50.030(e): "W tnessed telephonic
consent "

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -12- February 27, 2003



[ Subsection (e) in Anmendnent 3 read, "A gift by a
person designated in AS shall be nade by
a docunment signed by the person or mnade by the
person's telegraphic, recorded telephonic, or other
recorded nessage. "]

M5. SYLVESTER explained the reconmmendations. She said Life
Al aska had done an analysis of existing statute and had nade
recormended revisions to the Uniform Anatomcal Gft Act in
current statute. A lot of the provisions are in HB 25, but sone
are left out and sone need inprovenent. Jens Saakvitne of Life
Al aska did the analysis. HB 25 previously did not include a
section where |aw enforcenent is supposed to do an investigation
on an accident victims driver's license or on the individual's
person to see if there is an anatomcal gift card. She told the
commttee it does not have teeth in it, and it is not a
m sdenmeanor if law enforcenent does not do it, but it does
result in a lot of good information. A lot of donors are donors

as a result of an accident outside of the hospital. Law
enforcement will need to call the hospital to bring this to its
attention and <call the donor organization. She told the

commttee M. Saakvitne is available on line to answer questions
fromthe nenbers.

Number 1789

REPRESENTATI VE CISSNA asked if Amendnent 3 is a draft of
exi sting | aw.

M5. SYLVESTER replied that the commttee is looking at the

actual statute, the [Uniform Anatom cal G ft Donation Act]. She
said she struck out the language that is going to be elimnated.
For exanple, it is not necessary to have a surgeon sign

anyt hi ng, because there are other nechanisns that have taken
pl ace over the years with hospitals to ensure that these things
happen. Ms. Sylvester told the commttee that this conceptual
anendnent uses the original text of the Uniform Anatomcal G ft
Act . She said this |anguage would be nerged into HB 25 where
appropriate. Another exanple of l|anguage that is elimnated is
where the sanple form is renoved because this information
al ready exists in HB 25.

Nunmber 1886
JENS SAAKVI TNE, Director, Life Alaska, told the commttee the

original statute of the Uniform Anatomical Gft Act that Al aska
adopted was passed by all 50 states and for many years has been

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -13- February 27, 2003



considered the "gold standard.” However, Anmendnent 3 updates a

nunber of points which are needed. He said a typical organ
donor tends to be a younger person in good health until a
catastrophic event occurs, and those are the people who are
| east likely to have an advance directive. |In Amendnent 3 there

is language from the Uniform Anatomcal Gft Act that would |ay
out a system of donation and clarify who would nmake that choice,
if there is no directive in place.

CHAIR W LSON asked M. Saakvitne if Amendnent 3 inserts |anguage
in CSHB 25, Version D, that wuld include forns that are
normal ly signed by individuals when they are admtted into the
hospi t al

MR. SAAKVITNE replied that 90 percent of the people going into
the hospital who end up being organ donors are brought into the
hospital in a comatose state. Probably 50 percent of the tissue
donors do not go into the hospital at all or are brought in dead
on arrival, so there is no opportunity for a patient or patients
to sign a directive, unless he/she has done it before hand. M.
Saakvitne said in 20 years, the mpjority of people will have a
directive signed, but right now, it is a very snmall percentage.

Number 1967

REPRESENTATIVE CISSNA said Terry Bannister wth Legislative
Affairs Legal Services expressed concern that it takes time to
put anmendnents together and assure the correct |anguage is
included. She said if the changes are substantial it could take
a week or two to build the |anguage. Representative Ci ssna said
it is inportant to have individuals testify on this specific
amendnent who could hel p the nmenbers understand the inplications
of it based on their experiences and the effect it would have on
peopl e and organizations across the state. Representati ve
C ssna expressed concern in changing existing law wthout a
t horough review of its inpact.

CHAIR WLSON replied that the next commttee of referral [the
House Judi ci ary St andi ng Comm ttee] will addr ess t he
inplications of this |aw

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA told the commttee that the next commttee
of referral is the same commttee that did whol esale repealing
of |anguage |ast year. She said that the bill that is before
the commttee now is actually the bill that went through the
House Judiciary Standing Conmttee | ast year.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -14- February 27, 2003



CHAIR WLSON replied that if they have done this in the past,
they will be much nore famliar with it than the Health,
Educati on and Social Services Committee.

Nunber 2079

REPRESENTATIVE CISSNA replied that this information is of
special interest to the people whom the Health, Education and
Social Services Commttee serves. It is health issues. The
House Judiciary Standing Comrittee deals with judicial issues.

Number 2095

MARI A WALLINGTQON, MD., Ethicist, Providence Health System
asked if the ~current bill requires hospitals to ask for
donati ons. Currently, Alaska is one of the best states in

requi ri ng donation requests.

MR. SAAKVI TNE responded that it is not in the |anguage because
the federal governnment already demands that through its
conditions of participation. It is nandated by federal |aw.

MR. SAAKVI TNE said he wanted to point out one other inportant
aspect of the anmendnent in the Uniform Anatomcal Gft Act [AS
13. 05.060], which guarantees to the decedent's famly that there
isS no cost associated with donations. He said he feels it is
inportant that this is in witing. Anot her part that he feels
is inportant is the guarantee of separation, which says that the
physician who is responsible for pronouncing sonmeone dead,
cannot be involved in the donation or surgery of the organ that
is transpl ant ed. In some form or other it is crucial to have
t hose safety nmechanisns built in.

Nunber 2173

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the nodifications being discussed
woul d make Al aska out of step or out of conpliance with the
Uniform Anatomical G ft Act. He asked if this change would
create probl ens between states.

MR,  SAAKVI TNE responded that the anendnent would keep Al aska
Statute very nmuch in step with the Uniform Anatom cal G ft Act.
He said the anendnent would not be different from what other
states have.

Number 2190

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -15- February 27, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt Amendnent 3 [explanation
provi ded previously].

Number 2200

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER told the commttee that she does not w sh
to object; however, she is concerned that the comittee is
considering action on an anendnment of this nmagnitude w thout
having had tine to thoroughly reviewit.

Nunber 2250

CHAIR WLSON told the commttee Anendnment 3 will be set aside,
and asked the sponsor to provide the amendnent in a format that
is normally provided to the commttee [through Legislative
Affairs Legal Services].

Number 2290

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON withdrew his notion to adopt Amendnent 3.
Representative Seaton told the commttee he wanted to see the
anendnent integrated into the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH said he would be happy to have
Legislative Affairs Legal Services provide this as either an
anendnent or as a sponsor substitute, whichever the chair
prefers.

CHAIR WLSON said the conmttee will make that decision after
al | amendnments have been presented.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH began discussion of Anmendnent 4 and
told the commttee the last anendnent he received was from
Representative Cissna. He asked if he should present it or if
Representative Cissna would prefer to do it. In response to
Chair Wlson's inquiry as to whether the anendnent is a friendly
anendnent, he responded that part of it is and part he would
| i ke to discuss.

Number 2331

CHAIR WLSON told the conmttee that she would take testinony of
the CSHB 25 [Version D] while copies are nade of Anendnent 4.

TAPE 03-19, SIDE B
Number 2324

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -16- February 27, 2003



RICHARD BLOCK, Christian Science Commttee on Publications,
testified via tel econference in support of HB 25. He said that
since he does not have a copy of CSHB 25 [Version D] in front of
him he could not speak to that version of the bill. He said
that the Christian Science Commttee on Publications' greatest
concern is for individuals to have the ability or freedom to

make his/her own choices with respect to health care. O
particular interest to them is a new proposed section in the
bill, Sec. 13.52.010, which introduces the chapter on health

care decisions that provides for an advance health care
directive. He said their concern is for those who mght like to
rely exclusively on prayer for healing. In this section
individuals can set out how he/she w shes health care be
provided and who can or should be designated as the agent for
maki ng health care decisions when the individual is no |onger
able to nake them for hinself/herself. M. Block said the
Christian Science Committee finds that to be beneficial because
it provides freedom and places the decision making where it
really belongs, and that is wth the person hinself [or

hersel f]. He said the sponsor asked that he be available to
answer any questions from the conmttee. He said he has not
heard anythi ng di scussed about the adoption of a nodel bill that

was offered sonetinme ago. The nodel offers the protections the
Christian Science Conmttee is | ooking for.

Nunmber 2218

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked M. Block what section he was
referring to.

MR. BLOCK replied it was Sec. 13.52.010. This section provides
for an individual to select who would nake health care deci sions
and specifically what that individual would want if not able to
nmake those decisions hinsel f/herself. M. Block said there are
ot her sections of interest that cone later [in the bill] where
there is no advance directive and there is a selection of a
surrogate. The bill allows for individuals to wite down what
health care he/she would like under certain circunstances and
whom they nomnate as their agent for nmeking health care
deci sions on their behal f.

CHAIR WLSON thanked M. Block for being available and calling
fromParis, France.

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA noted that her staff nenber, Andy
Josephson, had worked on Anendnent 4 with Legislative Affairs

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -17- February 27, 2003



Legal Services staff, Terry Bannister. Representative Ci ssha
told the conmittee the anmendnent is a conceptual anmendnent and
that it took about a week to research and put together. Sone of
the anmendnent pertains to the Uniform Anatomcal Gft Act in |aw
right now, and sone includes |anguage for Title 47 that woul d be
repealed and was repealed by the House Judiciary Standing
Commttee in last year's bill

Nunmber 2038

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked if the chair would hold Amendnent
4 until Amendnent 3 has been heard.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that Anmendnment 4 is to the
original bill, not the proposed conmttee substitute.

Number 2007

CHAIR WLSON said that she will be setting aside Amendnents 3,
4, and 5 [by request of the sponsor]. Chair WIson asked
Representative Weyhrauch, the sponsor, to work with Legislative
Affairs Legal Services and bring back a conmttee substitute
that incorporates Amendnent 1 and 2, and an anendnent that
i ncl udes Amendnent 3.

CHAIR WLSON announced that the commttee would proceed wth
testinmony on the bill

Nunmber 1883

RON COMAN, Long Term Care Orbudsman, Mental Health Trust
Aut hority, Departnment of Revenue, testified via tel econference
in support of HB 25. He told the commttee he believes whatever
fine-tuning needs to be done can be done in the House Judiciary
Standing Committee. He supports the efforts being made not only
this year but |ast year as well.

Number 1831

MARGUERI TE STITSON, AARP, testified via teleconference in
support of advance directives, speaking on her own behalf as

wel | . She told the commttee she and her husband filled out an
advance directive over 10 years ago. Last year her husband
passed away while they were in another state. She said the

first thing the doctor asked her for was an advance directive
because her husband had bleeding on the brain and there was no
hope of recovery. She told the commttee since she did have the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 18- February 27, 2003



advance directive, she knew what he wanted, and it nmade it
easier on everyone. She said she wanted to express the
i nportance of having an advance directive.

Nunmber 1799

ROGER BRONSQON, Executive Director, Al aska Mental Health Consuner
Wb, testified via teleconference in support of HB 25. M.
Bronson stated that he believes the bill is a good one and any
changes that need to be made can be adequately addressed in the
House Judiciary Standing Commttee.

CHAIR WLSON told M. Bronson he mght contact Representative

Weyhrauch, since there will be time to address concerns of the
bill before it is heard again.
Nunber 1762

DR, WALLI NGTON asked whom she should talk wth concerning
patients who suffer from depression, for exanple, in a case
where a patient is now unconscious and a doctor needs soneone to
hel p nake decisions for them She said she is concerned that
physicians wll be handicapped if it wll be necessary to go to
court to appoint a guardian to nmke decisions for someone who
has had nmental health problens in the past.

CHAIR WLSON said she believes nost people who suffer from
mental illness have a guardi an.

DR. WALLI NGTON said there are many people who have fornms of what
she would call nental illness, but which would not be considered
mental illness by the state. She said, for exanple, if an
i ndi vidual has had situational depression or may have seen a
psychiatrist a few tinmes, that does not nean that he/she cannot
carry on life independently.

Nunber 1691

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked Dr. Wallington to clarify her
questi on.

DR, WALLI NGTON gave an exanple when an individual is in a car
accident, the individual is unconscious with a brain injury, and
sonmeone is needed to mmke decisions on his/her behalf. If the
i ndi vi dual does not have a nmental health directive or an advance
directive, then there is a surrogate possibility after HB 25
becones | aw. However, she said her understanding is that the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -19- February 27, 2003



anendnent pertaining to nental health concerns will require that
soneone with nental health issues have either a guardian or two
physicians in determning their incapacity. She said she would
li ke to know what qualifies as a nental illness under this | aw.

Nunber 1567

REPRESENTATI VE VWEYHRAUCH replied that he would like to have the
amendnent drafted and have Dr. Wallington take a look at it to
see if it addresses her concerns.

Nunber 1567

EDI E ZUKAUSKAS, Attorney, Disability Law Center of Al aska, Inc.
("Disability Law Center"), said the Disability Law Center is not
trying to prevent nedical treatnent. The issues the |law center
has in repealing the current statute are to assure that |if
soneone wth nental health issues |oses capacity, that the
treatment is done in a proper way. She said she would be happy
totalk to Dr. Wallington on this issue in another forum

MR. JOSEPHSON commented that he is hearing good discussion on
this issue. He said one of the concerns Representative G ssna
had with the original bill was the repeal of existing |aw that
requires separate perspective for people with nental health
i ssues.

Nunber 1480

SI QUX DOUGLAS, Hospice and Home Care of Juneau, testified in
support of HB 25. She al so spoke in support of the bill based
on her personal experiences in losing six close famly nenbers
in the last four vyears. Four of those deaths clearly
denonstrated the value of an advance directive. She said this
bill allows people to have a detailed directive, encourages

individuals to die with dignity, and to care for those |oved
ones very nmuch in the way that these individuals wsh to be
cared for. This bill encourages people to plan ahead and
therefore prevents very difficult |ast mnute decisions. Even
if individuals are in a dying state and are nentally very clear,
that is still a very tough tinme to explain to |oved ones what an
i ndi vidual wants. She told the commttee that this bill is the
sane as last year's bill, and urged the nenbers to pass this
| egi sl ati on. Ms. Douglas told the conmttee she was very
inpressed with the nenbers’' willingness to allow this bill to be
even nore conprehensive. She encouraged the nenbers to clean up
all the statutes and not be afraid to repeal what is needed.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 20- February 27, 2003



Number 1299

M5. DOUGLAS said that her husband, whom she nmarried |ast vyear,
|l ost his wife to sudden death and had to make the deci sion about
donating her organs hours later. It was a tough enotional thing
to do, even though he and his wife had discussed this.

M5. DOUGEAS told the commttee the Juneau End of Life Task Force

was fornmed a couple of years ago, after Bill Myer's special on
television on death and dying in Anmerica. A whol e nonentum
devel oped across Anerica, because people discovered that dying
is part of living. In Juneau, there was a town neeting where
i ndividuals |earned a | ot about how rmuch people care about this
i ssue, but had not been able to talk about it before. It nakes
it easier for people to find, in one place in law, what an
i ndi vidual can do, and it encourages them to do it in a very
conpassi onate way. She urged the nenbers to pass this bill out

of commttee.
Number 1203

MARI E HELM spoke on behalf of herself and famly. She told the
committee that she has been a resident of Al aska [Juneau] for
the last 20 years. Ms. Helm explained that the inportance of
advance directives recently hit honme for her. She said she |ost
her nother-in-law earlier this nonth. She |l earned a great deal
from that experience, as her nother-in-law had been in fragile
health for a long tinme, and had been in various hospitals. I n
each hospital the atnosphere was very different. She said in
each hospital the adm nistration, the physicians, and the staff
were working up to their highest sense of what was right and how
they could best serve the needs of the patient. However, the
end result for the famly and the patient could be very
different.

M5. HELM said for exanple, in a hosptial in the state of

Washi ngton the famly's wi shes were irrel evant. They [ hospital
staff and physicians] really did not want to know what the
famly felt or what was wanted. In fact, even what the patient

wanted was not particularly relevant to them They felt they
knew best in this situation and wanted to be free to follow

their own w shes. In another hospital, the physicians and the
staff were extrenely supportive. She said that was the
situation they were in when her nother-in-law passed on. Ms.

Helm said they were so grateful that they could speak wth
hospital staff and physicians and be heard, not in a patronizing

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -21- February 27, 2003



way, but in a way that gave dignity in the last nonents of her
nother-in-law s life. To have the opportunity to have things
the way she wanted at the end of her life was very inportant.
Ms. Helm said that as people live their lives with dignity, it
is inportant to leave with a sense of dignity. WM. Helm thanked
the coonmttee for the work they are doing.

Number 1060

CAROLE EDWARDS, Menber, Legislative Commttee, Alaska Nurses
Associ ation, testified in support of HB 25 [Version D. She
told the conmittee she is an oncol ogy nurse and deals with death
and dying. Ms. Edwards told the comrittee the association
conceptual ly supports this bill. The association thinks it is

great to have everything in one place because often nurses are
the ones who are between the famly, the physician, and the
patient.

M5. EDWARDS said the association has two questions or concerns.
Under Sec. 13.52.050, which deals with obligations of health
care providers, under (g)(3) [page 7, line 28] if the facility
does not conply with the wishes of the individual, the facility
must 1mediately make all efforts to transfer the patient to a
facility that will conply. In nost areas in Alaska there is
only one provider. It is not always easy to transfer an
i ndi vi dual who is dying. She asked the committee to keep that
in mnd as they are anmending the bill. She said another concern
along with this is who would pay for the transfer if the
hospital does not go along with what the famly wants. She
bel i eves that insurance conmpanies will not be too quick to pay.
She asked the conmttee to address this in sone way.

DR. WALLI NGTON conmented on the above-nentioned section, saying
she believed it would be inappropriate to ask the hospital to
pay for transportation for people who want sonething other than

standard care. She said that she cannot see anyone asking a
physician to do sonething the physician would not do, unless it
was sonething illegal, for instance, assisted suicide.

CHAIR WLSON said that her interpretation is that health care
prof essionals assist the patients in making plans for transfer
including preparations for a nove, nmaking calls, and other
details that would be hel pful

DR. WALLI NGTON agreed that the hospital cannot abandon a patient
because he/ she does not want to stay there.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -22- February 27, 2003



Nunber 0779

M5. EDWARDS said she had an experience sonetinme ago, when she
had a patient that was dying and had spoken with the famly, who
did not want the patient resuscitated. The physician who was
the primary care provider at that tinme was not confortable
witing DNR [ Do Not Resuscitate] orders. Therefore, nurses were
required to go charging in and resuscitate a termnally ill
cancer patient, whose famly did not want him resuscitated. I t
was a nost difficult situation. This physician was al ways
unconfortable witing DNR orders. She said her next question is
about Sec. 13.52.060(d) [page 8], regarding an oral order for

DNR from the physician. The bill says an oral or witten order
can be taken; however, Bartlett [Regional] Hospital ("Bartlett")
requires a witten order. There needs to be sone thought to

that issue. The nurses are caught in the mddle. She told the
commttee the doctor is required to cone into Bartlett and nake
a witten order because it is the nost inportant order a
physician will ever give.

0507

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked if a required witten order would
make it nore difficult for telenedicine, particularly in rural
areas.

M5. EDWARDS replied that renpte communities may want to have
some input on this, especially in areas that do not have a
physician present. Al aska has very unique situations and needs
to deal with things on a very different |level than the rest of
the country.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER sai d she can see hospitals' concern, but
not all Al askans work under those conditions all the tine.

M5. EDWARDS asked if it would be possible to provide that DNR
orders be either witten or oral, depending on the facilities'
requirenents.

Nunber 0467
MARK JOHNSON, Chief, Comunity Health and Energency Medi cal

Services, Division of Public Health, Departnent of Health and
Social Services, testified that this is the section he is npbst

interested in. The way he reads the bill, he does not think
this precludes Bartlett Regional Hospital from having a witten
requirenent. He said what this |anguage does is allow for the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -23- February 27, 2003



flexibility that Representative Kapsner is alluding to. In a
state |ike Alaska there are circunstances that are going to
occur that are not in a hospital situation. He believes this
does not say that Bartlett has to allow oral orders, but he said
he is not a | egal expert.

Number 0391

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he believes the |anguage needs
clarity and it can be done in an anendnent. He said he does not
want to put the nurses in a position where they have to obey the
| aw and viol ate the hospital's standard of care.

M5. EDWARDS said she has had argunments wth doctors in the
mddle of the night telling her to wite the order, and her
saying, "l can't."

CHAIR WLSON said she believes the institution's rules would
cover the nurse in an instance |like that.

M5. EDWARDS told the commttee of her mnor son who wanted to be
an organ donor when he got his driver's license because his
father and she are donors. However, he was not allowed to be an
organ donor because he was a minor. She told the commttee that

kids that age are the primary donors. There should be sone
mechani sm considered for mnors who want to donate and whose
parents approve of that to allow them to be donors. She said

the nurses association is supportive of this |egislation.
Nunmber 0194

Rl CHARD RAI NERY, Executive Director, Al aska Mental Health Board,
Department of Health and Soci al Services, gave a couple of brief
comments about the bill. He wants the commttee to know they
support HB 25. The concerns he has have been discussed with the
sponsor and stem from the fact that the bill repeals the Menta
Health Treatnent Declaration, a law that was adopted in Al aska
in 1996. Wien this passed it was a result of grassroots
consuner efforts, and put Al aska on the forefront in protecting
consuner rights. He said the board's <concern is that
protections currently in law are maintained. This would address
somre of Dr. Wallington's concerns, he suggested, and also
protect some other decision-making conventions in the nental
health field. The board has comruni cated those issues with the
sponsor's office, and virtually all of them are addressed in the
proposed CS and the anmendnents adopted today. There are just a

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 24- February 27, 2003



couple left, and the board wll nmake sure those points are
di scuss with the sponsor before the bill is heard again.

Nunber 0077

ROSALI E WALKER, President, Juneau Chapter of AARP; Board Menber,
a der Persons Action Goup (OPAG, testified that bot h
organi zations have been involved wth this bill since its
conception tw years ago. She said they have worked very
closely with the original sponsor, and continue to work closely
with the current sponsor by offering the organizations'
assi st ance. She said when the conmttee starts to "tweak" the
bill, they will be ready to "tweak." Ms. Wal ker stated that
this is a very inportant bill and the conmttee has shown great
respect by the work the nenbers are doing.

TAPE 03-20, SIDE A
Number 0001

M5. WALKER shared a personal experience with the commttee about
her nother's death |ast nonth. She told the nenbers her nother
lived in Baltinore, Maryland, where advance directives have been
| egal since 1993. At that tinme, the famly got together wth

her nother and agreed on everything. However, when her nother
reached the age of 90, she decided she did not want to give her
body away. Her nother told the famly that as old and

di | api dated as she was, she felt there was nothing they [Johns
Hopki ns Gerontol ogy Departnent] can do with it. M. Wl ker said
her nother had been part of a study wth Johns Hopkins
Gerontol ogy Departnent, and the famly tried to tell her that

there would be sone useful ness. Her nother said no, Johns
Hopkins need's "young, fresh stuff." So the famly had to go
through all the procedures again just to change that one portion
of the advance directive. It was not that hard, and it was done
to please her. She passed away two weeks shy of 94. She had
all of her faculties to the end. Ms. Wal ker said her nother

actually renmenbered nore than she wanted her to. Her nother was
happy about the directives, but the famly was happier because
everyt hing she wanted was done. It made it very sinple for the
famly. Ms. Wal ker urged the commttee to continue to work on
this bill.

Number 0183
MARI E DARLIN, Capitol Gty Task Force, AARP, testified in

support of HB 25 [Version D]. She concurred with Rosalie Wl ker
that she is happy that the committee is taking the tine to

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -25- February 27, 2003



assure that the bill is done correctly. There is a good reason
for getting this done. She pointed out the Anchorage Daily News
article in Sunday's paper that tal ked about Al aska's poor end-
of-life care. Ms. Darlin told the commttee one of the reasons
that Al aska got such a poor rating was |ack of physicians and
nurses, but it says Alaska's laws do not support good care
pl anning such as living wlls and powers of attorney for the

end-of-life care. Ms. Darlin said the state does have these
laws in place, but they are here, there, and everywhere w thin
the statutes. If the legislature can get all of this done now,

it would take care of many of the problens and the state would
be rated higher for end-of-life care. She said she would | eave
a copy of the article for the nenbers.

Nunmber 0368

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the commttee could get the bil
drafted to include all the amendnents and proposed anmendnents in

a proposed commttee substitute. He said he believes it will be
easier to deal with problens if the bill could be read as a
whol e.

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA agreed with Representative Seaton.

Nunber 0415

CHAI R W LSON announced that a commttee substitute will be taken
up before the conmttee on Thursday, March 6. [HB 25 was held
over.]

ADJ OURNNVENT

Nunber 0451

There being no further business before the comittee, the

Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Committee neeting
was adjourned at 4:45 p.m

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 26- February 27, 2003



